IN THE

SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

JERMAINE THOMAS,)	
5 .4.4)	
Petitioner,)	
)	
vs.)	CASE NO. SCO6-1630
)	(D.C.A. CASE NO. 4D04-3143)
STATE OF FLORIDA,)	,
)	
Respondent.)	
)	

PETITIONER-S BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

CAREY HAUGHWOUT Public Defender

Tom Wm. Odom Assistant Public Defender 15th Judicial Circuit of Florida Criminal Justice Building 421 Third Street/6th Floor West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 (561) 355-7600

Attorney for appellant

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

Petitioner was the defendant in the Circuit Court of the Seventeenth Judicial Circuit, In and for Broward County, and the appellant in the Fourth District Court of Appeal. Respondent was the prosecution and appellee in the lower courts. In this brief the parties will be referred to as they appear before the Court.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Petitioner was convicted of robbery by sudden snatching contrary to '812.131(1) & (2)(b), Fla. Stat. (2002) and aggravated fleeing and eluding contrary to '316.1935(2), Fla. Stat. (2002) and sentenced to mandatory minimum prison terms pursuant to the prison releasee reoffender (PRR) statute. Thomas v. State, 933 So.2d 45 (Fla. 4th DCA 2006); see '775.082(9)(a)1., Fla. Stat. (2002) (enumerating felonies qualifying defendants for PRR status). Petitioner sought review in the Fourth District Court of Appeal arguing, among other things, that the trial court erred in sentencing him under the PRR statute. Thomas, 933 So.2d at 46. The Fourth District Court affirmed petitioners convictions and sentences in all respects, but for petitioners PRR sentence for aggravated fleeing and eluding, which it reversed because aggravated fleeing and eluding is not one of the enumerated felonies in the PRR act or a Afelony that involves the use or threat of physical force or violence against an individual. @Id., citing '775.082(9)(a)1., Fla. Stat. (2002).

Petitioner sought rehearing before the Fourth District Court, contending that the Court had Aoverlooked@its prior decision in *Smith v. State*, 891 So.2d 1133 (Fla. 4th DCA 2005) as well as the Second District=s decision in *Cohen v. State*, 920 So.2d 682 (Fla. 2d DCA 2006). *Id.*, at 47. (Both *Smith* and *Cohen* hold that robbery by sudden snatching, unlike robbery, is not an enumerated offense qualifying defendants for PRR sentencing. *Smith*, 891 So.2d at 1133; *Cohen*, 920 So.2d at 682). The Fourth District denied

petitioner=s motion for rehearing, explaining that it affirmed petitioner=s PRR sentence for robbery by sudden snatching

because the PRR statute allows for the imposition of a PRR sentence for one of the enumerated felonies **or** under section 775.082(9)(a)1.o. for A[a]ny felony that involves the use or threat of physical force or violence against an individual@ and the evidence adduced at trial was to the effect that the victim and the defendant struggled over the victim=s purse and the defendant essentially dragged or pulled the victim toward the rear of her car.

Thomas, 933 So.2d at 47. (Emphasis in original). On August 9, 2006, petitioner filed notice of intent to invoke the discretionary jurisdiction of this Court, asserting that the District Court=s decision in this case was in express and direct conflict with the decisions of this Court. This jurisdictional brief now follows.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

This Court may properly review the decision of a district court that is in direct and express conflict with a decision of this Court. The Fourth Districts ruling in *Thomas* allows appellate courts, when deciding whether an offense qualifies a defendant for an enhanced sentence pursuant to the PRR statute, to consider the underlying facts of a particular case rather than its statutory elements to determine if it is a Afelony that involves the use or threat of physical force or violence. This ruling is inconsistent with prior decisions by this Court which require the courts to examine only the statutory elements of a crime to determine if it is a felony suitable to enhance a penalty. The *Thomas* opinion is in conflict with the specific ruling of this Court in *Perkins* that the courts may look only to the statutory elements of an offense to decide if it is a felony which Ainvolves the use or threat of physical force or violence against any individual.

ARGUMENT

THIS COURT HAS JURISDICTION TO REVIEW THOMAS V. STATE, 933 So.2d 45 (Fla. 4th DCA 2006), WHERE THE DECISION RENDERED IS IN EXPRESS AND DIRECT CONFLICT WITH THAT OF THIS COURT ON THE SAME POINT OF LAW.

Article V, ' 3(b)(3) of the Florida Constitution vests this Court with jurisdiction to hear appeals in criminal cases as follows:

(3) May review any decision of a district court of appeal. . . that expressly and directly conflicts with a decision of another district court of appeal or of the supreme court on the same question of law.

Accord Fla. R. App. P. 9.030(a)(2)(A)(iv). In Nielson v. City of Sarasota, 117 So.2d 731 (Fla. 1960), this court discussed Aconflict jurisdiction@stating:

the principal situation justifying the invocation of our jurisdiction to review decisions of Courts of Appeal because of alleged conflict are, (1) the announcement of a rule of law which conflicts with a rule previously announced by this Court, or (2) the application of a rule of law to produce a different result in a case which involves substantially the same controlling facts as a case disposed of by this Court.

Id., at 734; accord Aguilera v. Inservices, 905 So.2d 84 (Fla. 2005); Riggs v. State, 918 So.2d 274 (Fla. 2005). AThe constitutional standard is whether the decision of the District Court on its face collides with a prior decision of this Court, or another District Court, on the same point of law so as to create an inconsistency or conflict among precedents. World Insurance Co., 157 So.2d 517, 518 (Fla. 1963). The

decision rendered by the Fourth District Court of Appeal gives rise to a form of conflict jurisdiction.

The rule of *Thomas* as enunciated by the Fourth District allows appellate courts to look beyond the statutory elements of an offense to the actual facts of the case to determine if the crime is a Afelony that involves the use or threat of physical force or violence against an individual. ^a '775.082(9)(a)1.o., Fla. Stat. (2002). This Acatch-all^a provision of the PRR statute allows a defendant to be sentenced under the enhanced penalties of PRR even though he has not been convicted of one of the enumerated felonies. Robbery by snatching is not an enumerated felony under the PRR statute and, prior to *Thomas*, no court has held that robbery by snatching could be a crime involving the use or threat of physical force or violence. But whether a felony involves the threat or use of violence must be determined by the elements of the felony and not the actual facts of an individual case. In analogous circumstances, this Court has ruled that whether a prior offense qualifies as a predicate for enhanced sentencing is a question of law to be determined by its statutory definition, not the actual facts. See Robinson v. State, 692 So.2d 883 (Fla. 1997) (Georgia conviction for robbery by sudden snatching was not a felony for purposes of establishing a prior felony for habitual offender sentencing; determination made by reference to statutory elements, not actual facts.) See also Carpenter v. State, 785 So.2d 1182 (Fla. 2001) (statutory elements of gross misdemeanor conviction in Nevada does not constitute felony in Florida for purposes of establishing

aggravating circumstance in penalty phase of murder trial); *Dautel v. State*, 658 So.2d 88 (Fla. 1995) (only the elements of out-of-state crime, not underlying facts, may be considered in determining whether prior conviction is analogous to Florida crime for purposes of calculating guidelines sentence).

Perhaps more germane to petitioner=s argument is the case of *Perkins v. State*, 576 So.2d 1310 (Fla. 1991), where this Court held that cocaine trafficking is not a forcible felony, even though violence often accompanies drug trafficking and certainly violence occurred during the commission of Perkins=offense. Because criminal statutes must be strictly construed, the definition of a forcible felony as one that Ainvolves the use or threat of physical force or violence against any individual@can only be based upon the actual statutory elements of the crime itself rather than the facts of a particular case. *Id.*, at 1313. Petitioner would note that the language of the Acatch-all@provision of the PRR statute precisely mirrors that of the forcible felony statute, namely any other Afelony which involves the use or threat of physical force or violence against any individual.@ Compare ' 776.08, Fla. Stat. (2002) with ' 775.082(9)(a)1.o., Fla. Stat. (2002). A conviction for robbery by sudden snatching does not require proof of a statutory element involving the use or threat of physical force or violence against an individual and hence a conviction for this felony should not be used to enhance a criminal penalty. The decision of the Fourth District Court of Appeal in *Thomas* brings confusion to the law regarding whether a trial court judge must impose a minimum mandatory sentence pursuant to the

PRR statute upon a defendant-s conviction for robbery by sudden snatching.

CONCLUSION

Petitioner has demonstrated the existence of express and direct conflict and, as a result, this Court should grant the petition for discretionary review.