IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA,

JERMAINE THOMAS,

Petitioner,

v.

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

Case No. SC06-1630

ON APPEAL FROM THE FOURTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL

RESPONDENT'S ANSWER BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

CHARLES J. CRIST, JR. Attorney General Tallahassee, Florida

CELIA A. TERENZIO Florida Bar No. 0656879 Bureau Chief

JOSEPH A. TRINGALI Assistant Attorney General Florida Bar No. 0134924 1515 North Flagler Drive West Palm Beach, FL 33401 Telephone (561) 837-5000

Counsel for Respondent

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

Petitioner was the appellant and Respondent was the appellee in the Florida Fourth District Court of Appeal. The issue on appeal is whether the District Court erred when it affirmed Petitioner's sentence "because the PRR statute allows for the imposition of a PRR sentence for one of the enumerated felonies *or* under section 775.082(9)(a)1.o. for '[a]ny felony that involves the use or threat of force or violence against an individual' and the evidence adduced at trial was to the effect that the victim and the defendant struggled over the victim's purse and the defendant essentially dragged or pulled the victim toward the rear of the car."

In this brief, the parties will be referred to as they appear before this Court, except that the Respondent may also be referred to as "State" or "Prosecution."

The following symbols will be used;

JB = Petitioner's Initial Brief on Jurisdiction

R = Record on Appeal

T = Transcripts

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Respondent accepts Petitioner's Statement of the Case and Facts insofar as it represents an accurate, objective and non-argumentative recitation of the facts and procedural history of this case. A copy of the Fourth District Court of Appeal's decision is attached hereto for the convenience of this Court.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

In <u>State v. Hearns</u>, SC05-2122, the State argues that the statutory test rather than the underlying-fact test should be applied in determining whether a felony is one that "involves the use or threat of physical force or violence against an individual." This is, of course, the same argument that is presented by Petitioner in the case at bar. Oral argument in <u>Hearns</u> is scheduled for November 4, 2006.

In view of the State's position in <u>State v. Hearns</u>, SC05-2122, and the fact that the issue has been briefed and oral argument is scheduled, this Court should accept jurisdiction of this case and take no further action until <u>Hearns</u> is decided.

ARGUMENT

PETITIONER HAS PROPERLY INVOKED THE JURISDICTION OF THIS COURT; THE ISSUE INVOLVED IS IDENTICAL TO THE ISSUE IN <u>STATE V. HEARNS</u>, WHICH IS CURRENTLY UNDER REVIEW BY THIS COURT; THE COURT SHOULD ACCEPT JURISDICTION AND TAKE NO FURTHER ACTION UNTIL <u>HEARNS</u> IS DECIDED.

Petitioner was convicted of the crime of robbery by sudden snatching. Section 775.082 provides that a person who commits certain felonies within three years after being released for a state correctional facility may be sentenced as a prison releasee reoffender. Although robbery by sudden snatching is not one of the enumerated felonies under the statute, trial court found that Petitioner's actions brought him within the ambient of section 775.082(9)(a)1.o., a "catch-all" provision which provides that a PRR sentence may be imposed for "[a]ny felony that involves the use or threat of physical force or violence against an individual. The Florida Fourth District Court of Appeal affirmed Petitioner's conviction and sentence in the following language:

"We did not affirm Thomas' PRR sentence for the crime

of "robbery by sudden snatching" under the rationale that

"robbery by sudden snatching" is the equivalent of the

enumerated crime of "robbery" under section Rather, we affirmed the sentence 775.082(9)(a)1.g. because the PRR statute allows for the imposition of a PRR sentence for one of the enumerated felonies or under section 775.082(9)(a)1.0. for "[a]ny felony that involves the use or threat of force or violence against an individual" and the evidence adduced at trial was to the effect that the victim and the defendant struggled over the victim's purse and the defendant essentially dragged or pulled the victim toward the rear of the car.

<u>Thomas v. State</u>, 4D04-3143, at page 2.

Petitioner asks this Court to use its power of discretionary jurisdiction to review the decision of the Florida Fourth District Court of Appeal, and argues that "the definition of a forcible felony as one that 'involves the use or threat of physical force against any individual' can only be based upon the actual statutory elements of the crime itself rather than the facts of a particular case."

In <u>State v. Hearns</u>, SC05-2122, presently before this Court, the State raises the same argument as the Petitioner does in the case at bar. It appears that the holding of <u>Perkins v. State</u>, 576 So.2d 1310 (Fla. 1991) mandates an interpretation $\frac{W:Web Briefs/06-1630_JurisAns.doc}{5}$ of "involves" that is in conflict with the holding at bar. In its brief the State said:

Until this case [Hearns], it appears that the courts have generally taken an element-based approach to this issue, apparently due to this Court's decision in Perkins v. State, 576 So. 2d 1310, 1312 (Fla. 1991), where this Court interpreted the term "involves" in the "catch-all" provision of the forcible felony statute, s. 776.08, Fla. Stat., to mean that "the statutory elements of the crime itself must include or encompass conduct of the type described. The Court therefore concluded that a "forcible felony" is a felony "whose statutory elements include the use or threat of physical force or violence against any individual." Id. In accordance with this thinking, the Third District in Hudson v. State, 800 So. 2d 627 (Fla. 3d DCA 2001) (special concurring opinion of Chief Judge Schwartz adopted on rehearing as opinion of the court), clarified that to qualify as a forcible felony under s. 776.08, the crime, "by statutory definition, [must] necessarily involve physical force or violence against an individual." Id. at 629. The district court, speaking through then Chief Judge Schwartz, also suggested

that this rule would apply "no matter what the underlying facts or jury finding" are relating to the crime. <u>Id</u>. at 628.

In stark contrast to the statutory element test referred to above, it is quite evident that the Third District in the instant case used a fact-based approach is reaching its decision that Hearns' prior conviction for battery on a LEO was not a forcible felony for VCC sentencing purposes. Indeed, the district court came to this conclusion due to the fact that the State had not shown with "record evidence that Hearns' conduct against a law enforcement officer was a forcible felony."

State v. Hearns, Petitioner's Jurisdictional Brief, at pages 6-7

The State then argued that the statutory test rather than the underlying-fact test should be applied in determining whether a felony is one that "involves the use or threat of physical force or violence against an individual." This is, of course, the same argument that is presented by Petitioner in the case at bar.

In view of the State's position in <u>State v. Hearns</u>, SC05-2122, and the fact that the issue has been briefed and oral argument is scheduled, this Court should accept jurisdiction of this case and take no further action until <u>Hearns</u> is decided.

CONCLUSION

WHEREFORE based on the foregoing arguments and the authorities cited herein, Respondent respectfully submits this Court should accept jurisdiction of this case and take no further action until <u>State v. Hearns</u>, SC05-2122, is decided.